Public Document Pack

isobel

Committee Agenda
City of Westminster
Title:
Meeting Date:
Time:
Venue:

Members:

Westminster Scrutiny Commission
Monday 22nd November, 2021
6.30 pm
Hybrid, via Microsoft Teams and in Rooms 18.01-03, 64
Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP
Councillors:
Karen Scarborough (Chairman)
Iain Bott
Nafsika Butler-Thalassis
Gotz Mohindra
Adam Hug
Jim Glen

Members of the public and press are welcome to attend the
meeting and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda:
Link to Live Event
This meeting will also be livestreamed and recorded. To
access the recording after the meeting, please revisit the
link.
If you require any further information, please contact the
Committee Officer, Artemis Kassi on:
Email: akassi@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 078 1705 4991
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions, they should contact
the Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison Services in advance of the meeting
please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)
1.

MEMBERSHIP
To note any changes to the membership.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other
significant interest in matters on this agenda.

3.

MINUTES - TO FOLLOW
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21st June 2021.

4.

POLICY AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATES

(Pages 5 - 6)

To receive verbal updates about the work of the Policy and
Scrutiny Committees, including the extraordinary meetings of the
Finance, Smart City and City Management Policy and Scrutiny
Committee on 30 September 2021 and the Business and
Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee on 27 September
2021.
5.

LEADER'S UPDATE

(Pages 7 - 10)

To receive an update on current and forthcoming issues from
Councillor Rachel Robathan, Leader of the Council.
6.

COVID19 AND VACCINE UPDATE

(Pages 11 - 14)

To review and receive a report on COVID-19 cases, outbreaks
and the rollout of vaccinations across Westminster.

7.

CLIMATE EMERGENCY PROGRAMME UPDATE
To receive and review a report on the Council’s Climate
Emergency Programme. This report will include the Climate
Action Implementation Plan.

(Pages 15 - 22)

8.

CITY FOR ALL UPDATE

(Pages 23 - 26)

To receive and review a report on the City for All Strategy.
9.

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS REPORT

(Pages 27 - 36)

To receive and review a report on Westminster’s Emergency
Preparedness and Business Continuity planning.
10.

WORK PROGRAMME
To review and consider the Work Programme of the Westminster
Scrutiny Commission.

11.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Stuart Love
Chief Executive
12 November 2021

(Pages 37 - 46)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
BUSINESS AND CHILDREN’S POLICY AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Extraordinary Meeting – Marble Arch Mound project – 27 October 2021
RECOMMENDATIONS
Recommendation 1
Enhance the oversight arrangements for high profile projects involving complexity, risk and innovation
to minimise the risks identified in this report (i.e. significant project-overspend, circumvention of
existing governance processes and lack of robust project management).
Proposal: to strengthen the Corporate Portfolio Management Office with business partners assigned
to high-profile, high-risk projects. Business partners would ensure objectivity of reporting back to the
Corporate Portfolio Management Office, the Council’s Change Board, Executive Directors and the
Executive Leadership Team as an independent check and balance. Definition of high profile,
complexity and risk.
Business partners would also assure project initiation and project plans, including adherence to
governance structures.
Recommendation 2
Strengthen the terms of reference to the Capital Review Group and introduce a new commercial
project assurance gateway. Ensure a reporting function/regular, formal reports.
Proposal: to strengthen and, where necessary, clarify the terms of reference of the Capital Review
Group to avoid a project of this nature not being considered by the Capital Review Group in future.
Clarification will include the fact that large projects which are temporary in nature and therefore
revenue funded should still be considered by the Capital Review Group. Whilst we do not want to
recommend restricting innovative projects, there has to be a requirement of a reporting function to
CPMO/CRG ensuring regular, formal reports.
A new commercial project assurance gateway to be introduced which will review all high-risk projects
lying outside Council core competencies, including income assumptions. Cabinet Member Reports
with new income streams proposed will in future require evidence of assurance given by appropriately
skilled parts of the organisation on commercial assumptions.
Recommendation 3
Explore and recommend options for senior level resourcing (Director and above) to ensure
appropriate capacity, expertise and capability and encourage diversity of thought.
Proposal: The Chief Executive to review the Council’s senior level structure (Director and above) to
ensure appropriate levels of resourcing, skills and capability and make any appropriate
recommendations on changes to the Leader and Cabinet within three months of the date of this
report.
Recommendation 4
The Standards Committee to prioritise the review of the Member/Officer Protocol. This should be with
a view to strengthening the role of officers and members in giving and receiving clear and independent
advice. We want to retain the benefits of Members and officers working together to innovate. Whilst
there is no evidence that there is a problem in all areas of the Council relating to cabinet member /
senior officer relationships and governance, this Review presents a good opportunity to revisit the
existing provisions in the member / officer protocol.

Page 5

Annual Code of Conduct training for all elected members to include restatement of the protocol on
member / officer relations. The Governance and Councillor Liaison Team, together with the Chief
Executive, to provide ‘how to work with Members’ briefings to all senior officers, in particular new
starters.
Recommendation 5
Undertake an audit of the Council’s Highways contract management function in order to ensure that
the contract management issues identified by the Review are not repeated.
Proposal: the Council to consider its contract management arrangements in light of the findings of
this Review. (Note: the Council’s Highways contracts are independently assessed to ensure value for
money.)
Recommendation 6
Recruitment decisions for temporary / fixed term appointments over £100,000 to go to a panel of
relevant members, officers and (as necessary) independent experts for review to determine that
appropriate skills and competencies are covered. Final review by a member panel.
Proposal: The Council to strengthen the skills mapping, recruitment and sign off process for senior
appointments, whether high-paid temporary or fixed-term contracts, especially where above
£100,000. This would involve amendment of the Constitution.
Recommendation 7
Review of the resourcing of P&S Committees, with training to be provided for scrutiny chairmen,
scrutiny members and officers.
Proposal: In light of the proximity of the local elections, initial refresher training to be provided now
by the Statutory Scrutiny Officer with further training for members to be provided post-May
2022 by e.g. the CfGS. Refresher training to include: effective scrutiny, investigation, questioning,
call-in.

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

Westminster Scrutiny Commission

Date:

22 November 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Leader’s Update

Report of:

Cllr Rachael Robathan

Cabinet Member Portfolio:

Leader of the Council

1. Afghan refugee resettlement
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

As of 10 November 2021, there are 675 Afghan refugees housed in hotels in
Westminster following the emergency evacuations from Afghanistan in August
and September. This group is comprised of 305 adults and 370 children and
the direct support for them whilst they are in bridging hotels is provided by
central Government. The group will eventually be rehomed through either the
Afghanistan Relocations Assistance Policy (ARAP), or the Afghan Citizens’
Resettlement Scheme (ACRS).
The council plays two distinct supporting roles: a) supporting Afghan refugees
while they are living in the bridging hotel in Westminster e.g., with access to
local services and b) supporting families who will be permanently relocated to
Westminster.
The most significant risk for the Council is that refugees in bridging hotels in
the city present as homeless to secure another route to permanent
accommodation. This would place significant pressure on the council’s
housing system and is likely to result in a sub-optimal outcome for the
individuals involved as the ARAP and ACRS schemes offer a more direct
route to permanent accommodation than the council’s housing waiting list.
Officers are working with the Government and the local voluntary and charity
sector to manage this.
The Home Office has not been able to confirm how long refugees will remain
at the bridging hotels, but for the purposes of local support planning, officers
are working on the basis of a 9 month offer of support within hotels. A multiagency plan outlining the local support offer over the next 9 months is being
developed.
We are continuing to make representations to the Government, including
alongside Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and Camden Council, to
work quickly to resettle refugees in safe locations far more suitable for families
than an inner London hotel. We have also requested that Government look

Page 1 of 3

Page 7

carefully at all options which could avoid further refugees being placed in
hotels in Westminster to manage the pressures being placed on council
services. Government have confirmed that no additional refugees will be
placed in Westminster hotels and work is ongoing to define to offer to move
refugees into permanent accommodations.

2. Climate Emergency
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The council’s Climate Action Plan was launched on 3 November with almost
70 actions designed to tackle climate change and improve air quality across
the borough.
Testing of 15 charging points for commercial vehicle use has been
undertaken and will be expanded in 2022, with a wider scale pilot scheme
involving an initial 20 extra EV points for vans. More will follow as part of a
transport strategy designed to service the rapidly growing market for fast food,
groceries, and online shopping delivery vans.
Over 1,000 electric vehicle charging points have been installed with a further
500 points scheduled in for early 2022. We will also look to work with
Government and the Mayor of London to find incentives and grant funding to
help independent traders to make the switch to electric vehicles.
Other measures included in the Climate Action Plan include: a new Low
Carbon fund to help residents, small businesses and community groups make
energy savings, a climate education programme for schools, food waste
collection across the borough and a sustainable city charter, being developed
alongside leading landowners and developers, to help businesses cut
emissions.
We have worked closely with residents on a campaign to urge Government to
require the removal of diesel locomotives used at Marylebone Station and a
firm deadline for the adoption of hybrid technology across all rolling stock, as
soon as is practicably possible. The council joined with Birmingham City
Council and Oxfordshire County Council in co-signing a letter to the Minister
of State for Transport requesting action as part of the upcoming franchise
contract renewal, and an air quality action day was held at Marylebone Station
in October to highlight awareness. This saw the installation of a new air
quality monitor at Boston Place, the early readings from which confirm that
both PM2.5 particulates and Nitrogen Dioxide levels outside Marylebone
Station are significantly above the World Health Organisation recommended
limits. The data is available here https://www.breathelondon.org/.

3. Budget and Spending Review implications
3.1

The freezing of the business rates multiplier in 2022-23 is positive for the vast
majority of Westminster businesses with more of a benefit than any other Local

Page 2 of 3

Page 8

3.2

Authority given the size of the business rate take in the city. Officers are working
to quantify the direct impact on Westminster.
The 50% business rates relief for the hospitality, leisure and retail sectors will
benefit all Westminster businesses, with only around 10% of the largest
businesses being caught by the £110k rates cap.

4. Al fresco dining
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The temporary al fresco scheme, in place from April to 30 September, helped
nearly 900 businesses, bars and restaurants to open to outdoor diners by
implementing al fresco dining. 60 streets benefited from either pavement
widening, temporary closure of roads and parking bays to allow tables and
chairs to be set-up for outdoor restaurant seating in the street and saving many
businesses from closure by creating more than 17,000 additional covers.
Following a month-long consultation in September, the council received
feedback from residents and businesses in Covent Garden, St John’s Wood,
Warwick Way, Denbigh Street and Churton Street in Pimlico, Elizabeth and
Eccleston Streets in Belgravia and North Audley Street in Mayfair.
All schemes received overwhelmingly positive responses, ranging from 83% to
96%, from residents and businesses who agreed they would like the current al
fresco measures to continue until a permanent solution has been subject to a
full consultation.
Over the winter months, businesses can submit a request for additional
furniture such as heaters and gazebos. This is assessed on a case-by-case
basis to ensure safety.

5. Engagement and consultation
5.1

The council will shortly commence a review of how it undertakes consultation
and engagement to ensure a more consistent standard is applied across all
council activity.

5.2

This will also be an opportunity to ensure it is easy for communities to engage
with the council, for example, by clearly displaying consultation information on
the council’s website, planning consultation activity across the council,
including on timings, to get more meaningful feedback.

Page 3 of 3

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Adult Social Care and Public Health
Title:
Division:
Briefing Date:

Westminster Scrutiny Commission
Adult Social Care and Public Health
22 November 2021
Update on COVID-19 Cases, Outbreak and Rollout of
Vaccinations
Bernie Flaherty, Executive Director Adult Social Care and
Health
Anna Raleigh, Director of Public Health

Purpose:
Approved By:
Author:
1.

Cases / Epidemiology

1.1

Case rates have plateaued at a relatively high level from August onwards, with some slight variation
from week to week. This is consistent with what has been observed at a London level. Currently,
there are more cases in the 21-30 age cohort, with 363 being reported in October.

1.2

Geographical variation has been a feature of the London epidemic picture with Westminster
generally below the London average. Indeed, significant variations can be noted within boroughs
with more enduring transmission most notable in areas of deprivation from July to October 2021.
Figure 1: Case rate per 100,000 across London as of 11 November 2021:

Enf
223.6

Hrw

Brn
259.2

Hdn

Elg
290.6

Hns

Brt
270.3

Hms
330.8

Cmd
213.9

Kns
221.2

Rch

Isl

Wst

Wns

Kng

Tow

Swr

Mrt

Stn
349.5

Page 1 of 3

Page 11

Nwm

Lsh

Crd

235.3

313.4

Bar
188.0

Grn
208.0

Brm
236.3

Hvg
272.5

200.3

183.7

264.0

Rdb
220.7

237.7

188.0

309.8

Hck

Cty

Lam

240.5

184.6

175.7

227.8

Wth
215.1

181.4

217.4

320.5

Hgy
288.7

254.1

Bxl
205.2

289.2

1.3

Total number of COVID-19 cases (as of 11 November 2021) is 26,320. Westminster has the lowest
rate of infection in London at 175.7 per 100,000 population which is up by 5% from the previous
week.

1.4

Since the start of the pandemic, 418 Westminster residents have died with COVID-19 included on
the death certificate; 334 of these were within 28 days of a positive test and 25 of those 334 were
within the last 3 months.

2.
2.1

Outbreak Management
The Westminster Local Outbreak Management Plan has been updated in light of recent changes
to government guidance, particularly around the move to Step Four of easing lockdown, regulatory
proposals and self-isolation changes.

3.

Supporting the CCG with the Rollout of COVID-19 Vaccinations

3.1

The latest report from NHS England states 53% of Westminster residents over the age of 18 have
received two doses of the COVID-19 vaccine. This figure rises to 66% within our residents aged
50+. Westminster remains the lowest in London for vaccination rates across the age
cohorts. Vaccinations continue to be available through local clinics, pop ups and pharmacies. The
latest offer is available on the Westminster City Council website.
Communications and Engagement colleagues are promoting testing and vaccination uptake in the
city by:
 Promoting the latest COVID-19 safety messaging across council channels including the
importance of getting vaccinated, tested, including where and how and the latest advice around
ventilation, using face coverings, staying at home if unwell, hand washing and using the NHS
COVID app
 Promoting information around COVID-19 booster vaccines, including eligibility and information
on waiting to be contacted
 Supporting schools communicating with the 12-15 age group on the COVID vaccination roll out,
including key messages on consent, benefit and rollout
 Providing regular information and updates with 90 community champions, 180 Covid Health
Champions and over 500 stakeholders in the voluntary, community and faith sector, through
relevant forums and networks (e.g. Older People Providers’ Network)
 Working with Health colleagues to improve COVID-19 vaccine access by supporting and
promoting community-based vaccine pop-ups (e.g. Abbey & Stowe Centre, Little Venice),
pharmacy clinics and the Vaccine Bus
 Engaging the Vaccine Bus and Covid Testing Ambassadors in neighbourhood Autumn events,
such as Grand Junction Autumn Festival
 Community Champions & partners continue to support the families in deprived areas of
Westminster, including Church Street, Westbourne Park, Queens Park, Churchill Gardens
& Tachbrook with information, advice, reassurance and signposting around Covid safety and
Winter messaging
 Findings on outreach activity via voluntary sector funding to be collated to develop an insight
and recommendations report on COVID-19 vaccine attitudes and uptake.

Page 2 of 3

Page 12

3.2

WCC is responsible for booking schools in for the vaccination clinics. In collaboration with the
Strategic Education Lead and NHS colleagues, the rollout of vaccinations among the 12-15 age
group has rapidly gained momentum since it commenced 20 September 2021. Pop ups will then
be available during this forthcoming half term for those who have yet to benefit from the vaccine.

3.3

Booster vaccinations, using either Pfizer or Moderna, are available for those who are 50 plus,
carers, frontline health and social care staff or Clinically Extremely Vulnerable. Boosters within care
homes commenced from 1 October 2021 with roving teams. The target is to vaccinate all care
home residents and staff by the national deadline of 1 November 2021.

Page 3 of 3

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

AgendaITEM
ItemNo:
7
AGENDA
Westminster Scrutiny
Commission
Date:

Monday 22 November 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Climate Emergency Programme: Climate Action
Plan Implementation & Next Steps

Report of:

Raj Mistry, Executive Director for Environment and
City Management

Cabinet Member Portfolio:

Cllr Rachael Robathan, Leader of the Council

Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

City for All

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Amy Jones
Director of Environment
ajones9@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

In September 2019, Westminster City Council’s Full Council meeting declared
a climate emergency and committed to achieving net zero emissions by 2030
for the Council and by 2040 for the wider City. In addition, by 2050 the Council
committed to be a zero-carbon emitter, without needing to offset any of its
emissions.

1.2

The Climate Emergency team presented in April 2021 to the Westminster
Scrutiny Commission on how the Council was planning to achieve these
targets. The Commission welcomed the presentation but emphasised the need
for ongoing stakeholder engagement and collaboration, noting in particular the
need to engage in pan-London collaboration and to include under-represented
groups in future engagement.

1.3

Over the course of 2021, the council’s Climate Emergency team have engaged
with internal delivery teams, businesses, residents and community groups to
co-create a Climate Emergency Action Plan for the city. A series of evidencebased recommendations was published for consultation as ‘Co-Creating a
Climate Action Plan for a Zero-Carbon City’ in July 2021. During the summer
over 350 people provided feedback across a series of face-to-face and online
engagement events, and an online survey. Building on this feedback, a live

Page 15

Westminster Climate Emergency Action Plan was developed and published on
3 November 2021.
1.4

The new Climate Emergency Action Plan (CEAP) for Westminster sets out a
framework for partnership action on climate change across the borough. It sets
out 67 ambitious actions across five themes of Efficient Buildings, Clean and
Affordable Energy, Sustainable Travel & Transport, Reducing Consumption &
Waste and Green & Resilient City. These represent the key sources of
emissions for Westminster and the actions aim to kick start activity, with many
of the actions having deadlines within the next five years. The Plan is intended
to be a living document with certain elements being regularly reviewed, and the
whole plan being fully reviewed after three years.

1.5

The Plan includes actions the council will take to reduce its own emissions as
part of a citywide response. In addition, the Council has also committed within
the Plan to:



Publish its own emissions and progress on the Plan every year
Launch a Westminster Climate & Air Quality Alliance, which will bring
together representatives from across residents, businesses and the
third sector to oversee and support implementation and evolution of the
Plan

2.

Progress towards the 2030 target (Council emissions)

2.1

As set out in the CEAP, the council has so far achieved an 11.6% reduction in
emissions across its estate and operations in the two years from 2018-19 to
2020-21. However, this is not enough; we need to accelerate this reduction and
cut our emissions by 8.3% (3,700 tonnes CO2e) each year to meet our 2030
net zero target. It is also likely that some reductions during the financial year
2020-21 are down to reduced activity during the pandemic, and that these will
rebound in the following year’s data.

2.2

It is anticipated that the rate of emissions reduction should increase over the
next five years as the effect of our actions to decarbonise (for instance through
retrofitting our social housing and corporate estates) begins to be reflected in
the emissions data.

2.3

Over the past two years, we have started to make progress towards our 2030
target, including through the following actions:





We have purchased 100% renewable electricity for all Council-owned
sites and social homes since 2020
We have nearly completed our LED streetlight replacement programme,
replacing over 14,000 lights and saving 50% on energy consumption
We have reduced the carbon footprint of our Pension Fund equities
portfolio by 60% and are exploring routes to further reduce the carbon
impact of future investment activities
We are embedding carbon impact analysis in our capital bid process
from 2022 onwards

Page 16







We have committed £110 million from our Pension Fund towards
renewable energy infrastructure
We have rolled out carbon literacy training to over 50 staff and have
added climate action to staff induction and performance frameworks
We have delivered our first tranche of upcycled electric waste collection
and street cleansing vehicles for the West End, powered by energy from
the city’s waste
We will have delivered eco-friendly retrofits to 100 of our social homes
and 70 of our corporate properties by the end of March 2022
Our Highways team have developed a Carbon Management Tool as part
of the King Street Low-Carbon Roadworks pilot, which will now be
shared with other local authorities as a best practice tool for measuring
and reducing carbon emissions from highways projects

3.

Spotlight on key actions to help achieve the 2040 target (City-wide
emissions)

3.1

Although the Council does not control the 98% of Westminster emissions that
do not come from our own assets and operations, it does have influence over
local businesses, residents and visitors. The CEAP sets out ways that the
Council will use this influence to spur others to progress towards a net zero city
by 2040. A deeper dive into a handful of these city-wide actions is provided
below. For a full list of actions, please refer to the published CEAP document.

3.2

Efficient Buildings: Spotlight on targeting emissions reductions from the city’s
commercial buildings

3.3

Emissions from non-domestic buildings are the number one climate challenge
for Westminster, responsible for 71% of the city’s overall greenhouse gas
emissions. Many of the city’s non-domestic buildings were constructed pre-20th
century, and the Westminster Property Association (WPA) estimate that over
90% of these buildings will require retrofitting before 2030 just to meet statutory
requirements. This presents an opportunity to ensure that emissions are
substantially reduced through the retrofit process. However, since many
buildings are listed or in conservation areas, landowners will need to prioritise
sensitive methods of upgrade that avoid harm to heritage aspects wherever
possible.

3.4

We have started to work in partnership to find ways of reducing emissions from
non-domestic buildings, but recognise the need to accelerate this work. The
key area of focus is supporting commercial landowners to plan and deliver
retrofits to their properties that reduce operational emissions to net zero, whilst
minimising embodied emissions from demolition and rebuild.

3.5

Work on this objective is partly being driven through the development of the
Sustainable City Charter. This is a pledge which commits commercial landlords
and tenants to work together to reduce emissions from buildings, particularly
through the introduction of ‘green lease’ clauses into building rental contracts.

Page 17

3.6

Whilst work with the larger landowners will be key to this area, it is recognised
that there are many smaller commercial landowners whom we have not
engaged with in the past and who will be much harder to reach. Further work
needs to be carried out both to improve the granularity of our data on emissions
from individual buildings, and to identify smaller property owners.

3.7

Clean and Affordable Energy: Spotlight on Low Carbon Community Fund

3.8

Westminster’s current installed renewable energy capacity is low, and at
2,396kW, is less than half the inner London average. Solar power (in the form
of photovoltaic panels or thermal panels) is the main viable source of renewable
energy for Westminster. However, to date installation of solar panels in
Westminster has been slow due to a combination of costs, complexity and a
lack of available roof space on many Westminster properties.

3.9

To start to tackle this, we will be ringfencing a portion of the Carbon Offset Fund
to create a Westminster Low Carbon Community Fund. This £1 million fund will
provide grants to residents, community groups and SMEs to improve the energy
efficiency of properties and to establish community energy projects.

3.10

Sustainable Travel and Transport: Spotlight on EV charging rollout

3.11

Westminster already leads the way in the provision of EV charge points,
currently accounting for 4% of all EV charging points across the UK. In 2020
the Council published its Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy,
which outlined how this progress will be expanded over the coming years. By
April 2022, we are committed to having 1,500 charge points across the city,
including 30 rapid charge points. The distribution of these additional charge
points is being done to ensure an equal distribution to meet demand across the
city, considering current and anticipated volumes of EV ownership by ward. At
the end of the roll out programme, we anticipate that there will be a ratio of
resident owned EVs to charge points of 3.5:1 in all wards across the city.

3.12

However, going forward, we recognise the need to provide more EV charge
points for commercial vehicles, particularly small traders. Whilst residents can
charge vehicles overnight using trickle charge points, providing around 3-5kW
of power, commercial operators require rapid charge points that provide over
50kW of power and can charge vehicles in less than an hour. We are committed
to hitting the 30 rapid charge point target for this year; however, we are facing
additional challenges to installing rapid charge points as there are many
dependencies associated with installation, especially considering
Westminster’s medieval road network. We are looking at options to better
support commercial operator transition, notably a further installation
programme for rapid chargers next year. As part of the next programme, we will
be looking to have larger bay sizes to accommodate a broader range of vehicle
types as well as exploring options for pre booking of the charge points.

Page 18

3.13

Reducing Consumption and Waste: Spotlight on Food Waste Collection RollOut

3.14

At present nearly 80% of Westminster’s waste is sent for incineration to produce
energy, with the majority being processed at the Southeast London Combined
Heat and Power (SELCHP) facility in Lewisham. Whilst this process does
provide heat for nearby homes, it also creates greenhouse gas emissions, and
we are committed to reducing the proportion of our waste sent for waste-toenergy incineration.

3.15

One key step that we will be introducing across the city by the end of 2022 is a
separate food waste kerbside collection service for residents. At present about
30% of Westminster’s waste is food waste. The new service will divert any food
waste collected away from incineration and will instead send it for anaerobic
digestion at the Biogen plant in Hertfordshire, creating biogas which can be
used to generate electricity and heat. It is anticipated that this service will divert
approximately 3,000 tonnes of food waste per year away from incineration,
saving about 291 tonnes of CO2e per year in the process. We already offer a
food waste collection service for local businesses and will look for ways to
expand the take-up of this service alongside rolling out the resident offer. Since
the resident food waste offer will be voluntary, we are developing improved
communications to residents to encourage as many as possible to participate.

3.16

Green & Resilient City: Spotlight on Improving Resilience to Extreme Weather
Events

3.17

It is recognised that, even with rapid reductions in greenhouse gas emissions,
rising temperatures in the coming decades will have a major impact on
Westminster’s people and infrastructure. Risks include river, surface and
groundwater flooding, heatwaves, and the introduction of new diseases, with
surface flooding and heatwaves likely to be the most immediate threats.

3.18

Due to the highly built-up nature of Westminster and its limited drainage
capacity, surface water flooding is the most likely cause of flooding within
Westminster. Current guidance from the Environment Agency suggests that
extreme rainfall intensity is likely to increase by between 20% and 40% over
the next 100 years. The Westminster Initial Assessments Study has calculated
that in the event of a 1 in 100-year rainfall event taking place, some parts of
Westminster could be flooded to a depth of 1.5 metres.

3.19

In July 2021, parts of north Westminster experienced severe surface flooding
when 3 inches of rain fell across parts of London in 90 minutes and local flood
defence systems failed. Initial assessments show the sewer capacity was
inadequate to cope with the volume of surface water generated by the rainfall
event and sewers recharged into some basement properties.

3.20

Regarding heatwaves, The UN Committee on Climate Change UK Risk
Assessment from 2017 states that heatwaves in the UK on the scale
experienced in 2003 are expected to become the norm in summer by the 2040s.
Climate projections show that London will experience warmer, wetter winters

Page 19

and hotter, drier summers. As a city, London is particularly vulnerable to
heatwaves due to the Urban Heat Island effect, and Westminster will be heavily
impacted by any increases in the duration, intensity and frequency of
heatwaves.
3.21

Climate resilience is already incorporated to a degree through Westminster’s
planning system. For instance, Westminster’s new City Plan requires all new
developments to incorporate measures to mitigate against overheating using
natural ventilation methods. The City Plan also requires new developments to
incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems such as permeable paving and
rainwater harvesting systems, and requires Flood Risk Assessments to be
submitted for any developments within Surface Water Flood Risk hotspots.
Furthermore, as a lead Local Flood Risk authority, Westminster already has a
statutory responsibility to work with key stakeholders to manage the impact of
flooding.

3.22

We want to develop a holistic plan which addresses all aspects of climate
adaptation, including the range of future risks to people, businesses, green
space and infrastructure, and that sets out a comprehensive picture of how the
Council is proactively managing these risks. We aim to address this by working
with stakeholders on the development and publication of a Climate Adaptation
Plan for the city by 2023.

4.

Future Partnership Working

4.1

We will continue to grow the climate action partnerships that have been
established this year with key external stakeholders. This includes our
partnership with local schools which we’ve developed through our Climate
Action Classrooms competition and our piloting of climate change workshops
for primary schools. We will be offering all primary schools in the city the chance
to participate in a climate action workshop from 2022.

4.2

We will also strengthen these partnerships through the development and launch
of the Westminster Climate and Air Quality Alliance. The Alliance will help
shape our delivery approach to climate and air quality action and will oversee
implementation of the Climate Emergency Action Plan. Where possible, the
Alliance will make use of existing partnership structures, and will combine
climate and air quality issues in reflection of the fact that many of the relevant
stakeholders will be consistent across both themes.

4.3

The Alliance approach will be based on:




Westminster’s stakeholders working together and with the council in
strong and impactful collaboration of climate change
Ongoing engagement and involvement throughout the lifetime of the
Plan
Representation of the full range of our diverse stakeholders and their
social and economic circumstances, including the most vulnerable, from
across the borough

Page 20




4.4

Embedding climate conversations into all of our existing groups and
networks, drawing on their local experiences, expertise and leadership
A flexible approach using different channels of communication and
engagement to accommodate different audiences, needs and
circumstances.

We will also work closely with other London boroughs to deliver climate action
on a pan-London level. This will include supporting the implementation of the
Retrofit London Action Plan and co-leading the London Councils Climate
Programme workstream on Low-Carbon Transport with the Royal Borough of
Kingston. We also recognise the need for increased funding and support from
central Government to enable the implementation of many of the actions in the
CEAP, and we will make use of the opportunity for pan-London lobbying offered
through the London Councils Climate Programme.

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
Background Papers, please contact
Amy Jones ajones9@westminster.gov.uk

Page 21

APPENDICES

Appendix A
In the Climate Emergency Action Plan, we have specifically committed to deliver the
following actions by the end of December 2022:



















Retrofit up to 70 corporate properties, targeting 20% emissions
reductions.
Pilot a new combined support and enforcement approach to improve
minimum energy efficiency standards in the Private Rented Sector.
Implement our new Environment Supplementary Planning Document
and review it in 2022 to identify opportunities to go even further.
Publish our new Planning Obligations SPD, raising the local cost of
carbon.
Establish a dedicated online platform for residents, providing information
and advice on climate change, energy efficiency and wider sustainability.
Develop and agree a Clean Energy Strategy for the Pimlico District Heat
Undertaking (PDHU).
Mobilise our Council pension fund to increase investment in renewable
energy infrastructure, targeting £110 million investment.
Expand the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure to 1,500 charge points
in total across the city (including 30 additional rapid chargers for delivery
vehicles).
Deliver charging infrastructure at our Landmann Way Depot to enable
electrification of our waste fleet vehicles.
Upgrade our residential waste vehicle fleet (40 vehicles) to electric.
Promote the adoption of zero tailpipe emissions vehicles for deliveries to
and from licensed premises through the new Licensing Charter.
Pilot e-cargo bike share schemes across Westminster.
Ensure the use of cleaner hybrid-powered trains at Marylebone Station.
Adopt and implement our new Responsible Procurement Strategy to cut
supply chain emissions, prioritising those from our top 10 highest-spend
contracts.
Expand the residential food waste collection across the whole borough.
Develop a Green Economy Strategy to help accelerate the transition to a
low carbon circular economy.
Create a Public Realm SPD setting out detailed guidance on greening
within public realm schemes.
Establish a Westminster Climate and Air Quality Alliance.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Westminster Climate Emergency Action Plan

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
AGENDA ITEM No:

Westminster Scrutiny
Commission
Date:

Monday 22 November 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Update on City for All 2021/22

Report of:

Mohibur Rahman, Head of Strategy and
Performance (Strategy & Intelligence team)

Cabinet Member Portfolio

Councillor Rachael Robathan

Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

City for All

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Nic Wells, Strategy Manager
nwells@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

This paper provides an update on City for All to the Westminster Scrutiny
Commission, and the process for updating the strategy document for 2022/23.

1.2

Since the last update to the Scrutiny Commission, the Leader and Cabinet have
agreed to publish annual updates to the City for All strategy document.

1.3

We have also agreed improvements to the document development and design,
aimed at improving resident and wider community engagement with our City for
All Strategy. These include: proactively seeking resident and businesses’ views
on council priorities; ensuring that the document is more readable and
accessible to residents; and incorporating discussion of how the impacts of the
strategy will be evaluated.

1.4

We will ensure the 2022/23 strategy is easier for residents to engage with,
specific on what is being delivered by the Council, and more relatable to
residents and businesses (by showing that the Council is addressing their
needs).

Page 23

1

2.

Key Matters for the Commission’s Consideration
Commission members are asked to note the approach being taken to develop
the City for All strategy and provide feedback on the application of the strategy
this year.

3.

Background

3.1

In June 2021, Westminster Scrutiny Commission received a report on the most
recent version of the Council’s corporate strategy, City for All 21/22. That report
discussed how the Council had adapted City for All to incorporate priorities
related to economic recovery and tackling health inequalities. As a result, there
are now four pillars of work supporting City for All: Thriving Economy, Greener
& Cleaner, Vibrant Communities and Smart City.

3.2

The report also outlined how officers are creating an evaluation framework to
measure the strategy’s impact and to facilitate collaborative working across the
Council through the use of shared outcomes.

3.3

More recently, officers have been planning for the next annual City for All
publication. With very clear strategic priorities set out last year, the update will
focus on updating the Council’s progress against previous pledges, and
ensuring there are no major gaps in the Council’s plans for delivering on its
ambitions. This year we will also place a greater focus on incorporating
community feedback and insights through the update process, and on improving
engagement with the document itself. In September, the Leader and Cabinet
Members agreed the following changes to this year’s strategy development
process:





Using surveys and in-person activities to collect feedback on resident and
business priorities.
Producing a more succinct and accessible document.
Clarifying that we will be publish annual updates and why.
Incorporating information into the public strategy document on how we are
going to measure impact and progress.

4. Updating the CFA strategy document and increasing engagement
4.1

City for All is the Council’s visionary response to challenging and changing
times, with a focus on the Council enabling its communities and local economy
to thrive. City for All 21/22 set out how the Council seeks to work in partnership
with the public and other stakeholders to improve outcomes and establish
Westminster City Council as a leading local authority. As the Council emerges
from the worst of the pandemic, the Council has an opportunity to create even
greater levels of resident and business engagement with City for All
development and delivery, ensuring they help shape the future of the City. As
we move forward with this ambition, we have two angles to increasing
community engagement with City for All: collecting insight on resident and

Page 24

2

businesses’ priorities directly; and ensuring the document is accessible to the
public in its language, length, and content.
4.2

Annual updates thus far have incorporated resident and business perspectives
through elected Cabinet Members and front-line officers’ knowledge. Moving
forward we will enhance this insight through direct, targeted engagement with
local residents and businesses. This will include: the annual resident survey;
discussions via a new Resident Panel; regular business surveys; and
conversations with Business Improvement Districts. Insight from all of these
sources of engagement will be considered as part of the process for updating
City for All each year and incorporated into the strategy document appropriately.

4.3

Reinvigorating engagement with the public will help unlock valuable local
insights, and the annual strategy development process allows the Council to be
agile and respond to new resident and business needs or priorities. Doing this
will also demonstrate that the Council is listening to its stakeholders, and
through our resident and business surveys, we can check awareness of City for
All and perceptions of how the Council is delivering it.

4.4

The updated City for All document will be specific on what is being delivered by
the Council and more relatable to residents and businesses by showing that the
Council is addressing their needs. It will also provide updates on work we have
previously pledged to deliver, how it addresses resident or business needs, and
how it supports delivery of our strategic outcomes.

4.5

As well as including more specific timelines for delivery, data will be used to
show progress and impact more transparently. We will include measures and
targets alongside a shorter list of well-defined pledges. The resulting document
will clearly and concisely communicate key activities and plans.

5.

Evaluating City for All’s impact and its delivery progress

5.1

In June 2021, the Commission was advised on the steps being taken to enhance
assurance around City for All delivery: a City for All evaluation framework. The
framework will allow the Council to determine how effectively it has delivered
City for All and estimate its overall impact over the medium to longer term and
is based on a set of outcomes.

5.2

These outcomes are drawn from existing City for All narrative, and make the
Council’s ambitions more tangible and specific to all staff. They will allow them
to link individual, team or service plans to City for All, and enable staff to work
more collaboratively to achieve the same goal(s). Championed by senior
leaders, these strategic outcomes will also serve to ensure the Council’s City
for All strategy is fully embedded across the organisation. [Work on the
evaluation framework is ongoing, and we are looking to finalise and sign off the
approach early in the new year.]

5.3

As we commence work to refresh the City for All strategy document, steps will
be taken to ensure that any new pledges are wherever possible SMART. That

Page 25

3

is: specific and unambiguous, measurable, achievable and realistic, with a
timescale for delivery. It will also be important to make sure that cross-cutting
outcomes are known and understood by Members and staff alike and that
ownership for delivery is also clearly assigned. It is important we take steps to
ensure these parameters are identified before a new pledge is accepted and
signed off.
5.3

Each outcome will have accompanying measures to track progress against it.
These measures will form part of the evaluation framework and will be
comprised of internal and external datasets. These will be reviewed periodically
to scrutinise and assure City for All’s impact, and provide a single view of
progress as a result.

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
Background Papers, please contact
Nic Wells nwells@westminster.gov.uk or Mohibur Rahman
mrahman@westminster.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
BACKGROUND PAPERS
This section is for any background papers used to formulate the report or referred to
in the body of the report.



City for All Vision and Strategy 2020-21
City for All Vision and Strategy 2021-22

Page 26

4

Agenda Item 9
Westminster Scrutiny
Commission
Date:

November 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Emergency Preparedness Update

Report of:

Raj Mistry, Executive Director of Environment & City
Management

Cabinet Member Portfolio

Leader of the Council

Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

City for All

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Calvin McLean
Director of Public Protection & Licensing
07811 242508
cmclean@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.1.

This report provides an update for the Westminster Scrutiny Commission on
the following items:


Surface Water Flooding Response:
- Review of the July 12th Flooding Response
- Lessons learned and their implementation



Key areas of ongoing work:
- Overview of current core activity
- Humanitarian Assistance
- Cold Weather Planning
- Resilience Standards for London

2.

Introduction

2.1.

An annual update has been provided to the Scrutiny Commission since 2018
providing an update of the council’s current activity in relation to emergency
preparedness and resilience. The report also addressed specific areas of
interest to the Commission.

Page 27

2.2.

The previous annual report focused primarily on how the pandemic had tested
our emergency preparedness and elements of the partnership response to it.
Our response to Covid-19, for example ongoing work around vaccination,
testing and outbreak management, transitioned away from emergency
response arrangements in to a longer term ‘business as usual’ structure.

2.3.

Previous reports have provided updates in relation to lessons learned from the
Grenfell Tower fire and their implementation. There have been a number of
changes to the timetable and phasing of the Grenfell Tower Inquiry. As such,
there have been no further reports relating to emergency preparedness since
the Grenfell Tower Inquiry Phase 1 Report. The recommendations of which
were largely incorporated within the pan-London EP2020 standardisation
programme.

2.4.

The standardisation of response capabilities across Borough Emergency
Control Centre (BECC) and Local Authority Liaison Officer (LALO) and the
ways of working (Concept of Operations), roles and staff training, were
implemented in Westminster ahead of 2020. The other elements of the
standardisation programme, particularly those relating to Humanitarian
Assistance, have been delayed significantly and have not yet been received
by the Council.

2.5.

The focus of this report is on the findings of the review of the response to the
surface water flooding that took place in July of this year. This review also
looked more broadly at the council’s preparedness and emergency planning
responses. Alongside this, updates are provided on key elements of core
activity in relation to emergency planning and preparedness.

3.

Review of the July 12th Flooding Response

3.1.

On 12th July, over 4 inches of rain fell on several London Boroughs within a
short space of time. This flash flooding had a significant and distressing impact
particularly on those residents living in basement properties situated in the
Maida Vale area of the City. The causes of or contributing factors to the
flooding itself are outside of the scope of this report and are considered
elsewhere, including through the statutory s19 flood review and an
independent review commissioned by Thames Water.

3.2.

It was recognised that the council’s response to this major incident was not to
the standard that would be expected of the council or to which the council
should be looking to deliver. As a result, in the initial response phase,
communication, reassurance and welfare support to impacted residents was
insufficient.

3.3.

In light of this, an external Emergency Planning Consultant was commissioned
to conduct a review, the aim and objectives being to complete an urgent ‘hot’
review of emergency planning and preparedness to identify any urgent
improvements that are required to improve confidence in the service.

Page 28

3.4.

The review took the form of interviews with officers from across the council
who were either involved responding to the incident or the following day at the
beginning of the recovery phase. An opportunity has also been provided for
others employed within the council to contribute.

3.5.

As this incident impacted multiple boroughs, a multi-agency debrief was held
by the London Resilience Group on 6th August and representatives from
Westminster’s Emergency Planning Team participated. Draft
recommendations have been circulated for partners to consider.

Lessons Learned and their Implementation
3.6.

Several recommendations have emerged from the review which will help the
borough’s preparedness for future incidents, particularly flash flooding. Steps
have already been taken to implement these recommendations and an action
plan will follow in relation to the rest.

3.7.

This report will not detail all of the recommendations, however, two of thekey
recommendations are below:

Establish a Strategic Board with oversight over a range of activities ensuring
Resilience is Everyone’s Business.
3.8.

There are a range of issues highlighted in the report, including
 A lack of volunteers to perform roles in the Borough Emergency Coordination Centre or Rest Centres,
 Developing and maintaining plans and checklists;
 Succession planning for Humanitarian Assistance
 Monitoring and developing the Resilience Standards for London selfassessment
 Improving and progressing business continuity plans.
There is a need for strategic oversight by establishing a cross directorate
board led by an Executive Director to drive forward these activities with a
reporting line directly to the Chief Executive providing updates on progress
and flagging any risks. This approach with oversight from the Board ensures
resilience is everyone’s business.

Preparedness - Build community resilience in response to future major
incidents
3.9.

A significant percentage of staff employed by Westminster reside outside the
area. As with many other inner London boroughs, this presents difficulties
ensuring there are sufficient staffing resources available to respond to major
incidents, such as the flooding, not only outside normal office hours and
weekends but also as a result of a number of staff working from home.

3.10. As indicated in the borough’s Resilient Standards for London self-assessment,
there is a need to identify a means, such as using social media, of both
engaging and deploying local voluntary and community groups to help provide
coordinated support during the initial response and subsequently during the

Page 29

recovery operation. Westminster is fortunate enough to have a large network
of volunteers through Westminster Connects which was originally established
to support people who were vulnerable due to the pandemic and will be
explored as a future means of providing support following major incidents.
3.11. An example of the implementation of learning from the July 12 th flooding
incident is provided in the response to a possible further flooding incident in
October. Notification was received of a ‘yellow’ weather warning impacting
London and the south-east – suggesting a medium likelihood of low impacts.
Services were updated through the Business Continuity champions network so
that they could implement any mitigation or business continuity arrangements.
Communications messages were prepared and the call centre brought in
additional staff and were advised of the escalation process should they receive
calls relating to flooding. As a result, the Council was well placed to respond
when the weather warning was upgraded to amber, suggesting a medium
likelihood of medium impacts, at very short notice. Information was added to
the Council’s website and City Inspectors were deployed to check areas
identified in the Multi-agency Flood Plan as ‘Surface Water Flood Risk
Hotspots’. Thankfully there was no significant impact on Westminster’s
communities. This approach has now been taken on a number of times since
October.

4.

Overview of current core activity

4.1

The table below highlights some of the core business as usual activity that the
Emergency Planning team undertake. The Pandemic has continued to cause
disruption to much of the team’s core activity, resulting in changed demand.
This includes planning for and testing ahead of large scale events, almost all
of which have been cancelled.

4.2

The notable reduction in the number of major incidents and emergencies,
reported to the Commission last year, continued in to the early part of 2021.
The number has since increased to levels not dissimilar to pre-pandemic.

Performance Indicator
External Business
Continuity Engagement
Events
External Business
Continuity Engagement
Event Attendees
Incidents Responded to

2020/21
Total
8

200

18

EP Tests or Exercises

8

Training Sessions
Delivered

11

2021/22
Comments
Qtr 2 Update
4
Meetings with BIDs including Parliament
Square, and Victoria BID.
Number of attendees is not known as the
Virtual meetings
number of people attending virtual
– details not
meetings was not recorded.
recorded
14
Several large-scale incidents responded
too, including recent flooding events, fuel
shortages and support of Afghan
settlement.
9
A number of exercises linked to royal
funeral arrangements and flooding.
0

Page 30

Number of People
Trained

55

0

Strategic ‘Gold’ & Tactical ‘Silver’
command and coordination training
sessions delivered.
Training delivery plan in development for
Q3/4.

4.3

The nature and extent of protests in the City continue to place additional
demand on the emergency planning team and on the command team out of
hours. During the pandemic, there was an additional requirement that Covid19 health and safety risk assessments which needed to be reviewed at short
notice by the Council.

4.4

There was an extended period of Extinction Rebellion protest in
August/September of this year. The direct impact on Westminster was less
than has been seen previously. As a result, the Borough Emergency Control
Centre was not activated but contingencies were put in place for it to be
stepped up at short notice. Instead, service co-ordination and information
sharing took place through daily meetings with service leads throughout the
protest period in order to manage and mitigate the impact of the protest on
residents, businesses and council services.

4.5

Corporate business continuity arrangements were stepped up throughout the
period of fuel supply disruption. Like many local authorities, the Council does
not have its own bunkered fuel supply but many of our key contractors do.
Daily situation reports were received from across Council services in order to
ensure that critical services were able to continue and reports were produced
for ELT on a daily basis. Some services activated business continuity plans,
for example, by limiting vehicle use to essential activities only. Some delays
and difficulties were experienced by school transport in the early part of the
disruption. Adult day services transports were identified as being at risk if the
disruption continued and contingencies for access to bunkered fuel were put in
place through one of the Council’s contractors. These contingencies did not
need to be activated. The overall impact on council services was wellmanaged and therefore limited. In addition, a review was undertaken of the
council’s Designated Filling Station plan.

4.6

The majority of major events that emergency planning would typically be
involved in the testing or plans for were either cancelled or scaled back
significantly during this year. Support was provided through the tactical ‘Silver’
and the emergency planning team during the Euro 2020 games shown on
Trafalgar Square and in liaising with partners where there were issues or
disruption away from the screening. For example, information sharing and
coordination of the cleansing response/recovery.

5.

Humanitarian Assistance

5.1

The bi-borough Humanitarian Assistance Board was refreshed and agreed
new terms of reference in late 2019. The Board has direct responsibility for
the bi-borough Humanitarian Assistance Plan; the extreme weather plans; the
identification of vulnerable people and information sharing agreements. It also

Page 31

has responsibility for overseeing other plans which have a Humanitarian
Assistance element. The Board meets twice yearly. If a Strategic Board is
established, the Humanitarian Assistance Board would report to that Board in
Westminster as it does to the RBKC Contingency Planning Assurance Group.
The current areas of work of the Humanitarian Assistance Board that are
particularly relevant to this update are outlined below.
5.2

Succession planning for the retirement of the Bi-borough Emergency Planning
Manager (Humanitarian Assistance) is ongoing, including arrangements to
increase capacity in emergency planning and incident response activities so
that the welfare response to incidents occurring at the same time in both
boroughs can be managed adequately. It has been agreed that the
Emergency Planning Manager will return to work with reduced hours after his
retirement to transfer expertise in Humanitarian Assistance to other staff and
to fulfil the role of Humanitarian Assistance Advisor (one of the standardised
London Resilience roles)) in the event of a major incident.

5.3

The current Emergency Planning Manager has been contributing significantly
to the development of the London Humanitarian Assistance Framework. This
has included training for Social Care directors in the role of Humanitarian Lead
Officer; developing London guidance on providing comprehensive support to
people critically affected by major incidents and development of a London
Information Sharing Agreement to support local agreements between
responding agencies. All of these London developments will be adapted for
inclusion in the Bi-borough Humanitarian Assistance Plan.

5.4

A bi-borough Social Care database is being developed so that it becomes
easier to identify our service users in basement accommodation in areas
affected by flooding.

6.

Cold Weather Planning

6.1

There is a London Severe Weather and Natural Hazards Response
Framework. This is a regional framework which outlines the multi-agency
approach to responding to any severe weather or natural hazard, from high
winds and snow to drought and wildfires. The winter weather arrangements
include elements to keep things running, which primarily fall to local
authorities, and plans to respond to winter weather service pressures, led by
UK Health Security Agency (UK HSA).

6.2

There are four levels of severity identified in the Cold Weather Plan for
England. Service plans include levels of preparedness and response
commensurate with each of those levels.

6.3

Individual services develop and maintain plans to respond to adverse winter
weather plans. The ‘Winter Service Plan’, which gives a hierarchy of priorities
for the treatment of roads and pavements, describes the type and levels of
operations to deliver such treatments, defines the roles and responsibilities of
contractor and Council staff, provides for management and communication

Page 32

through designated contacts covering each 24 hour period, and provides a
weather forecasting service from MetDesk. The plan is routinely in effect from
1 November each year and there are four levels of mobilisation.
6.4

From a health and social care perspective, cold weather advice for all care
providers and partner agencies, derived from the National NHS Cold Weather
Plan, is sent out at the beginning of the winter season and again whenever
there is a severe cold weather warning from the Met Office. A system is in
place for the purchase of heating equipment or blankets for vulnerable people
whose heating has failed and where there is not a social landlord responsible
for dealing with that. Our Hospital Social Work Service takes part in enhanced
admission prevention and hospital discharge activity with Hospital Trusts and
the wider Health and Social Care network during the Winter Pressures period.

6.5

All schools are invited to apply to the Council’s Winter Service Team for
supplies of gritting salt to make safe essential pathways around and within the
schools’ boundaries. The Winter Service Plan also has details of
establishments such as care homes and sheltered schemes so that
pavements outside those buildings can get an enhanced gritting treatment to
reduce the risk of falls for vulnerable people.

6.6

The Emergency Planning receive cold weather alerts from the MetOffice and
UK HSA. On receipt of these, information is briefed out to services through the
Business Continuity Champions network.

7.

Resilience Standards for London

7.1

The Resilience Standards for London (RSL) were launched in 2019. These
are the way in which the organisation is assessed for resilience and
preparedness around Emergency Planning. The eleven standards are
designed to both provide assurance and also to drive continuous improvement
across the full range of this area of work: from senior leadership and
organisational culture to emergency response to recovery and building
community resilience. The Council’s Executive Leadership Team are the
accountable body for these standards and good practice is that appropriate
services, departments and teams take ownership of standards that are most
relevant to them.

7.2

The assurance process involves an annual self-assessment, followed by a
sub-regional challenge process. In addition, a Local Government Association
led peer challenge process, involving an external panel of reviewers
interviewing staff and reviewing evidence over a three day, is expected every
three years. The self-assessment process for 2020 was replaced by an interim
assurance process specifically related to Covid-19. The external peer review
process was similarly delayed.

7.3

A further interim process has been put in place for London Local Authorities
for 2021. This Assurance Checklist includes a combined assurance process
considering learning from the Grenfell Tower Fire (based on recommendations

Page 33

from the Phase 1 Inquiry Report) and winter preparedness (based on
Resilience Standards for London). Details of this process have only just been
received and the deadline for submission is in January 2022.
7.4

The Council undertook the RSL self-assessment at the beginning of 2020 but
this has not been reviewed since. These standards should be subject of a
further review, with strategic oversight and with an intention of progressing
these themes to achieve advanced status.

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
Background Papers please contact Mark Chalmers x6032
mchalmers@westminster.gov.uk

Page 34

BACKGROUND PAPERS
N/A

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Westminster Scrutiny
Commission
Date:

22 November 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

2020/21 Work Programmes

Report of:

Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison

Cabinet Member Portfolio

Cllr Rachael Robathan, Leader of the Council

Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

City for All

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Artemis Kassi
akassi@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

This report asks the Westminster Scrutiny Commission to review topics for the
2021/22 work programme and note the action tracker.

2.

Key Matters for the Commission’s Consideration

2.1

The Commission is asked to:



review and approve the draft work programme (Appendix 1) and prioritise
where required; and
note the Action Tracker (Appendix 2).

3.

Work Programme

3.1

After the November meeting, the Commission is currently scheduled to meet
on:



3.2

Wednesday 9 February 2022; and
Wednesday 23 March 2022.

The proposed list of topics at Appendix 1 takes into account comments by the
Commission at previous meetings. The Commission members and officers
present may wish to suggest further items for the 2021 to 2022 Commission
work programme.

Page 37

3.3

The Commission may also wish to consider the unallocated items which it was
not possible for the Commission to cover as part of its work programme during
this municipal year. Items which would be suitable for consideration at the
February meeting include the impact of COVID-19 on Council finances, as this
would be timely at almost two years since the UK experienced the first lockdown
as a result of the global pandemic.

3.4

The February meeting would also be appropriate timing for the Commission to
consider its Annual Scrutiny Report. The Annual Report for 2018 – 2019 was
previously considered at the Commission’s meeting on 1st July 2020.

3.5

The Commission had decided at its meeting in April 2021 that climate
emergency work should feature as a standing item on its work programme. The
work programme reflects this.

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
background papers, please contact Artemis Kassi.
akassi@westminster.gov.uk

APPENDICES:
Appendix 1 – Westminster Scrutiny Commission Work Programme
Appendix 2 – Action Tracker
Appendix 3 – Terms of Reference

Page 38

WESTMINSTER SCRUTINY COMMISSION
WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022
ROUND ONE
21 JUNE 2021
Agenda Item

Reasons & objective for item

Represented by

Chief Executive Q&A

To receive an update

Stuart Love (Chief
Executive)

City for All

To review progress against the
delivery plan for City for All in
2020/2021

Stuart Love (Chief
Executive)
Pedro Wrobel (Executive
Director, I&C)

Work Programme for
2021/2022

To discuss the Work Programme
for the municipal year (2021 –
2022)

Artemis Kassi, Lead
Scrutiny Advisor

ROUND TWO
22 NOVEMBER 2021
Agenda Item

Reasons & objective for item

Represented by

Leader Q&A

To receive an update

Cllr Rachel Robathan
(Leader of the Council)

Emergency Preparedness

To review Emergency
Preparedness planning and
Business Continuity

Stuart Love (Chief
Executive)
Raj Mistry (Executive
Director, ECM)

Climate Emergency
Programme

To receive an update on climate
emergency work (standing item)

Raj Mistry (executive
Director, ECM)
Amy Jones (Director of
Environment)

Work Programme for
2021/2022

To discuss the Work Programme
for the municipal year (2021 –
2022)

Artemis Kassi, Lead
Scrutiny Advisor

Page 39

ROUND THREE
9 FEBRUARY 2022
Agenda Item

Reasons & objective for item

Represented by

Chief Executive Q&A

To receive an update

Stuart Love (Chief
Executive)

Climate Emergency
Programme

To receive an update on climate
emergency work (standing item)

Raj Mistry (executive
Director, ECM)
Amy Jones (Director of
Environment)

Work Programme

To discuss the Work Programme
for the next municipal year (2021
– 2022)

Artemis Kassi (Lead
Scrutiny Advisor)

ROUND FOUR
23 MARCH 2022
Agenda Item

Reasons & objective for item

Represented by

Leader Q&A

To receive an update

Cllr Rachael Robathan
(Leader of the Council)

Climate Emergency
Programme

To receive an update on climate
emergency work (standing item)

Raj Mistry (executive
Director, ECM)
Amy Jones (Director of
Environment)

Work Programme

To discuss the Work Programme
for the next municipal year (2021
– 2022)

Artemis Kassi (Lead
Scrutiny Advisor)

Page 40

UNALLOCATED ITEMS
Agenda Item

Reasons & objective for item

Impact of COVID-19 on
Council Finance

To review the impact of COVID-19 Gerald Almeroth
on Council finances
(Executive Director of
Finance and Resources)

Update on Fair Funding
Review

To receive an update on the fair
funding review

Gerald Almeroth
(Executive Director of
Finance and Resources)

Staff Survey

To consider the results of the
staff survey and the Council’s
approach to responding to
concerns raised.
To review the annual scrutiny
report

Lee Witham (Director of
Human Resources)

Climate Emergency
Programme

To receive a progress update
since April 2021

Raj Mistry (Executive
Director, ECM)
Amy Jones (Director of
Environment)

The Council’s Consultation
Process

To review the Council’s process of Pedro Wrobel (Executive
engaging with stakeholders
Director, I&C)

COVID-19 update

To receive an update on COVIDBernie Flaherty (Executive
19 (Public Health) (standing item) Director, ASC & PH)
Anna Raleigh (Director,
Public Health)

Annual report

Page 41

Represented by

Artemis Kassi (Lead
Scrutiny Advisor)

This page is intentionally left blank

WESTMINSTER SCRUTINY COMMISSION
Action Tracker 2021/2022

ROUND ONE
21 JUNE 2021
Agenda Item
Item 5: City for All
Strategy

Action
Update
Strategy and Intelligence team to
Completed – briefing
produce a non-technical briefing note dated 9 July 2021
on the data and intelligence used for
analysing inequalities and how they
are used (e.g. to contribute to CfA)
(PW)

Item 5: City for All
Strategy

Overall strategy and evaluation of CfA In progress
to be covered at WSC
CfA pillars to be covered individually at
P&S committees

Item 5: City for All
Strategy

Discussion of approach to involving
WSC in future City for All strategy
cycles (SL/PW)
Update on the CfA evaluation
framework

In progress

Item 6: Work
Programme

Reminder of dates

Completed in scrutiny
members’ update
(October 2021)

Item 6: Work
Programme

Covid19 updates to become a
standing item

Completed – update at
meeting on 22.11.21

Item 5: City for All
Strategy

Page 43

Completed – update at
meeting on 22.11.21

This page is intentionally left blank

WESTMINSTER SCRUTINY COMMISSION - TERMS OF REFERENCE
COMPOSITION
Six (6) Members of the Council (four nominated by the Majority Party and two by the Minority
Party) but shall not include a member of the Cabinet.
TERMS OF REFERENCE
(a) To carry out those duties assigned to the Westminster Scrutiny Commission as set out in the
Constitution.
(b) To carry out the Policy and Scrutiny function in respect of matters within the remit of the
Council’s non-executive Committees and Sub-Committees, which are within the broad remit of the
Committee, in accordance with the Policy and Scrutiny procedure rules.
(c) To be responsible for the management and co-ordination of the Policy and Scrutiny function.
(d) To assign tasks to the most appropriate Policy and Scrutiny Committee, where the issue does not
sit within the terms of reference of a particular Policy and Scrutiny Committee.
(e) To scrutinise the work of the Leader of the Council including at public Question and Answer
session(s).
(f) To approve the Annual Report of Policy and Scrutiny activity, as required under the Constitution.

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

